

Overview and Scrutiny District Centres Subgroup

Date: Tuesday, 11 September 2018

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Room 132, Town Hall

Everyone is welcome to attend this subgroup meeting.

Access to the Town Hall

Access to the Town Hall is via the access ramp next to the Lloyd Street entrance.

Members of the public should report to the reception desk.

Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny District Centres Subgroup

Councillors - Connolly, Hughes, Madeleine Monaghan, H Priest and Shilton Godwin (Chair)

Agenda

1. Minutes Pages

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2018.

3 - 5

2. Introduction to the Work on District Centres

Oral report of the Institute of Place Management

To receive an introduction to the work on District Centres, for the benefit of new members of the Subgroup.

3. Overview of Footfall Data

Oral report of the Institute of Place Management

To receive an overview of the footfall data gathered.

4. Pilot Project - Update and Policy Approaches - to follow

5. Terms of Reference and Work Programme Report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit

Pages 7 - 10

To review the terms of reference and work programme of the Subgroup.

Further Information

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee Officer:

Rachel McKeon Tel: 0161 234 4997

Email: rachel.mckeon@manchester.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on **Monday, 3 September 2018** by the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 6, Town Hall Extension (Mount Street Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA

Economy Scrutiny Committee – District Centres Subgroup

Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2018

Present:

Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair Councillors Appleby, Hacking, Hughes, Madeleine Monaghan and H Priest

Councillor B Priest, Deputy Leader

Professor Cathy Parker, Institute of Place Management (IPM), Manchester Metropolitan University (MMU)
Professor Dominic Medway, IPM, MMU
Gareth Roberts, IPM, MMU
Chloe Steadman, IPM, MMU

ESC/OSG/18/01 Minutes

Decision

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2017.

ESC/OSG/18/02 Matters Arising From the Minutes

The Chair noted that the recommendation that the Economy Scrutiny Committee receive a timeline for the work on district centres had not yet been completed. She also asked how the recommendation that consideration be given to transport connectivity, including the opportunities presented by the Bus Services Bill, would be addressed. The Strategic Director (Strategic Development) suggested that this be considered by the Economy Scrutiny Committee, to which the Chair agreed.

Decisions

- 1. To request that the timeline for the work on district centres be provided to the Economy Scrutiny Committee.
- 2. To request that the Economy Scrutiny Committee consider transport connectivity, including the opportunities presented by the Bus Services Bill.

ESC/OSG/18/03 Update and Policy Pilot Proposals

The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Strategic Development) which provided some background to the work due to begin shortly on place management pilots being undertaken as part of the District Centres Subgroup work programme. It set out the expected approach to work within the centres included in the pilots, and suggested what type of outcomes were most likely to emerge from this work. The Planning and Infrastructure Manager introduced the report across its main themes. The Committee also received a presentation from Professor Parker from the IPM which provided an overview of the Vital and Viable Neighbourhoods project.

Minutes 18 January 2018

A Member asked how proposed substantial changes to Chorlton District Centre would impact on its involvement in the pilot. Professor Parker advised that her team would build consideration of this into the project and help traders and other local stakeholders to plan for the changes.

A Member advised that local traders had questioned the value of footfall data and had been carrying out a transaction study, as they believed it was important to study the people who were spending money. Professor Parker advised that her team could assist with their study and would listen to what their local issues were. She reported that footfall data would provide information on the activity in the areas from which assumptions could be made, for example, higher activity at times which would correspond with commuting. Professor Medway added that footfall would be counted 24 hours a day and 365 days a year which would be enable the identification of patterns and changes.

Members discussed the involvement of stakeholders in the pilot projects. The Chair advised that it was important to involve a wide range of local stakeholders, not just traders. A Member advised that local residents' groups did not necessarily reflect the views of the majority of local residents. She suggested that local Members be involved at the earliest stage. Professor Parker suggested that, after meeting with the Council's neighbourhood teams, a summary be provided to local Members so that they could feed into the process at that stage, prior to the meeting with local stakeholders.

Members questioned how the boundaries of the district centres included in the pilot project would be determined. The Planning and Infrastructure Manager advised that the boundaries had not yet been defined and that the views of local Members would be taken into account.

Members discussed connectivity, noting that it was important not just to have good transport links between district centres but also from areas which did not have their own district centre.

Professor Parker advised that Members of the Subgroup could have membership of the Institute of Place Management for the duration of the project, which the Chair welcomed. The Chair referred to two IPM papers which she had received and requested that Professor Parker circulate these to all Members of the Subgroup.

The Chair welcomed that the proposed changes in Chorlton would be taken into account by the IPM and that they would provide support to local traders during this period. She recommended that the widest possible group of stakeholders be involved in the pilots and that local Members be consulted beforehand. She also highlighted that district centres and those who used them would often not be restricted to one ward. She advised that it was important to be flexible in considering where the boundaries of a district centre lay.

The Chair highlighted that this work also needed to address the issue of underserved communities, areas of the city where people did not have access to functional centres. Professor Parker advised that this part of the work was still in its preliminary stages and suggested that the Chair be involved in the early meetings about this work. The Chair agreed and suggested that Councillor H Priest also be involved in this work, which would then be considered by the full Subgroup at a future meeting.

Decisions

- 1. To welcome that Subgroup Members would be offered membership of the IPM for the duration of the project.
- 2. To request that Professor Parker circulate the two papers referred to above to all Subgroup Members.
- 3. To welcome that the proposed changes in Chorlton would be taken into account at the workshop by the IPM and that they would provide recommendations to support local traders during this period.
- 4. To recommend that the widest possible group of stakeholders be involved in the pilots and that local Members be consulted beforehand.
- 5. To welcome that the views of local Members would be taken into account when determining the boundaries of district centres.
- 6. To request that the Chair and Councillor H Priest be involved in the early discussions about the work on under-served communities and to note that this would then be considered by the full Subgroup at a future meeting.

ESC/OSG/18/04 Terms of Reference and Work Programme

The Subgroup reviewed the Terms of Reference and work programme. The Chair asked whether the recommendations arising from the four place management pilots would be available by the next meeting on 12 March 2018. The Planning and Infrastructure Manager advised that officers would be able to provide an update and some recommendations for this meeting, although the final recommendations from the pilots would not be available. The Chair recommended that the work programme be updated to reflect this. She also requested that the issue of under-served communities, taking into account new housing development across the city, be considered at a future meeting in the new municipal year, subject to the Economy Scrutiny Committee re-establishing the Subgroup.

Decisions

To agree the work programme, subject to the above amendments.



| Title | District Centres Subgroup |
|-----------------|--|
| Membership | Councillors Connolly, Hughes, Madeleine Monaghan, H Priest |
| 2018-2019 | and Shilton Godwin (Chair) |
| Lead Executive | Councillor Richards |
| Members | |
| Strategic | Eddie Smith, Strategic Director, Development |
| Directors | Ladio Omiti, Guatogio Birottor, Bovolopmont |
| Lead Officers | Eddie Smith, Strategic Director, Development |
| 2000 01110010 | Richard Elliott, Head of Policy, Partnerships and Research |
| | Angela Harrington, Head of Work and Skills |
| | James Shuttleworth, Planning and Infrastructure Manager |
| Contact Officer | Rachel McKeon, Scrutiny Support Officer |
| Objectives | To develop a vision and strategy for the management of a |
| | network of centres that is forward-looking, allowing vital and viable centres to emerge, develop, improve and transform, |
| | and to manage change so that centre provision reflects demand over the next 20 years. To map underserved |
| | communities – areas of the city where people do not |
| | currently have access to functional centres and to develop a |
| | methodology for forecasting the future demand and location of new centres |
| | 2. To develop guidance, describing how centres of various |
| | sizes can emerge, develop and improve/transform |
| | 3. To improve performance and build place management |
| | capacity in 4 existing centres (Chorlton, Northenden, |
| | Harpurhey and Gorton) |
| | 4. To establish activity (footfall) as a key performance indicator |
| | for planning and management. To scrutinise footfall analysis of 10 centres (Chorlton, Northenden, Harpurhey, |
| | Gorton, Victoria Avenue, Rusholme, Cheetham Hill, |
| | Levenshulme, Fallowfield, Withington) |
| | 5. Recommend 4 policy pilots to test out more transformative |
| | approaches to centre development and improvement. What can Manchester City Council do to most effectively enhance |
| | a centre's performance? |
| Key Lines of | To apply learnings from the Institute of Place Management's |
| Enquiry | High Street UK 2020 project, identifying key actions that |
| | Councils can lead to support centres. |
| | 2. To analyse current centre performance to ensure that policy |
| | can take account of specific centre characteristics. |
| | 3. To review development, growth and investment proposals |
| | across the city to inform future priorities for centre policy. |
| 0 | 4. To map the Council policies which impact on district centres. |
| Operation | This subgroup will report its findings to the Economy Scrutiny |
| | Committee by submitting minutes to the Committee. The |
| | Committee will be asked to endorse any recommendations |
| | from the Subgroup. |
| Access to | Meetings of the Subgroup will be open to members of the |
| Information | media and public except where information that is confidential |
| | or exempt from publication is being considered. |

| | Papers for the Subgroup will be made available to members of the media and public on the Council's website and the main entrance to the Town Hall except where information which is confidential or exempt from publication is being considered. |
|--------------|--|
| Schedule of | 11 September 2018 |
| Meetings | Further meeting dates to be confirmed |
| Commissioned | January 2016 |

Economy Scrutiny Committee – District Centres Subgroup Work Programme – September 2018

| Tuesday 11 September 2018 at 5.00 pm in Room 132, Town Hall (Report deadline – 31 August 2018) | | | | |
|--|---|------------|------------------------|----------|
| Item | Purpose | Lead | Lead Officer | Comments |
| | | Executive | | |
| | | Member | | |
| Introduction to the | To receive an introduction to the work on District | Councillor | Eddie Smith/James | |
| Work on District | Centres, for the benefit of new members of the | Richards | Shuttleworth/Institute | |
| Centres | Subgroup. | | of Place | |
| | | | Management | |
| Overview of Footfall | To receive an overview of the footfall data | Councillor | Eddie Smith/James | |
| Data | gathered. | Richards | Shuttleworth/Institute | |
| | | | of Place | |
| | | | Management | |
| Pilot Project – | To receive an update on the four place | Councillor | Eddie Smith/James | |
| Update and Policy | management pilots, including recommendations. | Richards | Shuttleworth/Institute | |
| Approaches | To consider work to develop the policy approaches | | of Place | |
| | in the four centres selected for the pilot project. | | Management | |
| Terms of Reference | To review and agree the Subgroup's terms of | | Rachel McKeon | |
| and Work | reference and work programme, and consider any | | | |
| Programme | changes or additions that are necessary. | | | |

| December 2018 – Date TBC | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|---|-----------------------------|---|----------|--|
| Item | Purpose | Lead Executive Member | Lead Officer | Comments | |
| Under-served Communities | To consider the issue of under-served communities, taking into account new housing development across the city. | Councillor Richards | Eddie Smith/James Shuttleworth/Institute of Place Management | | |

| Review/Reflect | To consider the outputs from the work with the Institute of Place Management. | Councillor Richards | Eddie Smith/James Shuttleworth/Institute of Place Management |
|---|---|------------------------|---|
| Terms of Reference and Work Programme | To review and agree the Subgroup's terms of reference and work programme, and consider any changes or additions that are necessary. | | Rachel McKeon |
| | To consider whether the meetings held have been sufficient to meet the objectives of the Subgroup, or whether further meetings are necessary. | | |